Oregon Cultural Trust Board Meeting
February 23, 2023
9:00 am to 12:00 pm

Cultural Trust Board Meeting

Join Zoom Meeting
https://oreqon4biz.zoom.us/j/85895046208?pwd=SGJuciNCh2tOMOptMEsxd2R0SGVpZz09

Meeting ID: 858 9504 6208

Passcode: 078475

One tap mobile
+13462487799,,858950462084%,,,,*078475# US

Page 1 of 69






business

n

To enhance the quality of life for all Oregonians | To lead in building an environment in which cultural
Mission °§§33’;5?§J s through the arts by stimulating creativity, leadership | organizations are sustained and valued as a core ‘
and economic vitality | part of vibrant Oregon communities.

e Policy development and advice to government on programs related to arts [ e  Policy development and advice to government on programs related to

e Official state arts agency culture
(IR ¢ Grantmaking e Fund development
Purpose e Advocacy e Grantmaking

e  Multiple programs (Community Development, Arts Education, Percent for | ® Advocacy

Art) e  County/Tribal Coalition development
. 11 Members Appointed by the Governor, confirmed by the Senate
Governance 9 Members Appointment by the Governor bp y y

1 House Member; 1 Senate Member

e 4.5 Admin & Programs c ! ; 35
3 Contract (Percent for Art) Si?gztglre Fund Development, Communications, Assistant

Budget $3,728,492 $3,384,340

General Fund, Federal Fund (NEA)
Other Funds (Percent for Art, Cultural Trust, The Ford Family Foundation, Other Funds (Contributed, License Plate, Interest Earnings)
Oregon Community Foundation, Lottery)

Revenue
Sources

Services &
Technical Percent for Art { Grant Trainings ¢ Staff Outreach ¢+ Online Resources ¢+ Communications } Coalition Leadership

Assistance |

Shared

Services Office ¢ Technology/Software ¢ Financial ¢+ Contracts ¢+ Human Resources ¢ Administrative * Communication Staff

Grants FY2021: July 1 20120 — June 30, 2021

e Arts Access Reimbursement, $5,914 e Cultural Development, $1,350,719

e Arts Build Communities, $180,002 e Coalitions, $676,760

e Arts Learning, $190,000 e Cultural Partners

e Career Opportunity, $164,126 e Oregon Arts Commission, $181,868 FY19

e Designated, $40,000 e Oregon Heritage Commission, $60,623 Donations
e Fellowship, $25,000 e Oregon Historical Society, $60,623 $4,557,355
e Operating Support, $1,493,981 e Oregon Humanities, $181,868

e Small Operating, $209,423 e State Historic Preservation, $60,623

e Total = $1,493,981 e Total = $2,573,084

Revised 03/08/22



»

~ \

OREGON ARTS Sophorn Cheang
COMMISSION Director, Business
Oregon
Arts Commission Staff Cultural Trust Staff
Oregon Arts Oregon Cultural
Commission Trust Board of
Board of Directors Directors
Arts Commission
Cultural Trust
Executive Director
Brian Rogers
A (ZCIEE e & | (el G A Art Collection & Senior Program Communications Grants & Office Administrative Cultural Trust
Grants Programs . s . .
. . Artist Specialist Manager Manager Coordinator Assistant Manager
CompliEEr CeTRliiEL e Sarah Baylinson Liora Sponko Carrie Kikel Kat Bell Raissa Fleming Aili Schreiner
Tiffany Harker Ryan Burghard
| | | | |
Poetry Out Loud 6 Percent for Art 2 Marketing AdSm lgésitar”astltve 2 Temporary
Contractor Contractors Contractors Ji P . Employees
ill Coughlin
|

Website
Maintenance
Contractor

Arts Commission and Cultural Trust Staff

Updated: 10/24/2022




DRAFT
Oregon Cultural Trust Board Meeting Minutes

October 27, 2022 Teleconference

Board Members Present: Niki Price, Chair; George Kramer, Vice-Chair; Gayle
Yamasaki, Treasurer; Gustavo Morales; Myong-Hui Murphy; Deb Schallert

Board Members Absent: Bereniece Jones-Centano; Sen Bill Hansell; Nathalie
Johnson; Rep John Lively, Sean Andries; Chris Van Dyke

Staff Present: Jill Coughlin, Arts Administrative Specialist II; Raissa Fleming, Trust
Assistant; Carrie Kikel, Communications Manager; Brian Rogers, Executive Director;
Aili Schreiner, Trust Manager, Liora Sponko, Senior Program Manager

Partners Present: Eliza Canty-Jones, Oregon Historical Society, Chrissy Curran,
State Historic Preservation Office; Julia Soto, Oregon Humanities; Kuri Gill, Oregon
Heritage Commission; Jenny Green, Oregon Arts Commission

Others Present:

Welcome and Call to Order
Price called the meeting to order at 9:02 am. Deb Schallert was welcomed as an
incoming Board member.

Minutes: July 28, 2022
Motion: Yamasaki moved approval of the minutes from the July 28, 2022 meeting
as presented. Seconded by Price. Motion passed unanimously.

Cultural Partner Reports

Canty-Jones presented the Oregon Historical Society (OHS) report. OHS is working
hard on their priorities of visibility, high quality work and financial stability. The
“Human Experience in the Great Basin” symposium is taking place in Bend and
explores the ways tribal and non- tribal scholars work together in uncovering their
history. OHS is grateful for increased funding from the Cultural Trust. Signing up for
the OHS e-digest was encouraged.

Curran thanked the Trust for funding Oregon Heritage Commission (OHC); they’re
able to use on their grant program for preservation projects. The Eastmoreland
Historic District project was passed on to park services, a significant boon to

1

Page 5 of 69



freeing up staff time for preservation projects. The National Registry of Historic
Places has challenges with inclusion and diversity; OHC is working on making
progress in this area. They are also bracing for change with a new incoming
governor.

Gill presented report. In-person events have resumed, including hosting free
workshops related to organizational change management. Oregon Main Street
conference was held in Klamath Falls and was a big success. The State Advisory
Committee on Public Places was also a success. Their summit in the spring is
virtual, with a focus on volunteer recruitment and engagement. Directed people to
look at the Upper Floor study in the meeting packet. 50% of historical sites have
unused upper floors; OHC is pushing to change that.

Green, Oregon Arts Commission: Tiffany Harker hired as Arts Education and Grants
Coordinator. Farewell to Eleanor Sandys. A few staff attended National State Arts
Agency Conference. Strategic Plan was approved. DEIA plan to follow. Bulk of OCT
funds goes to Operating Support to arts organizations. Poetry Out Loud will be in
person. Need more support financially and to that end are starting an Arts and
Culture Caucus. Senator Anderson has joined, excited to have our first senator on
board.

Oregon Folklife Network Presentation

Emily Hartlerode, at University of Oregon/Eugene. Shared her PowerPoint
presentation. Explained purpose and history of OFN. Mission to research cultural
diversity throughout the state. Four core programs: apprenticeship. Survey, roster,
and culture fest. 5 artists awarded funding to pass their living traditions and art
form to promising apprentices. Give presentation of their project that OFN records
and adds to their artist page. Can find on Oregon Culture Keepers Roster on their
website. Funding model at the university changed and they lost half of their
funding, slashed from 400k to 200k. Working on increasing their funding. No full-
time employees, wants to regain capacity.

Funding Programs Update

Cultural Development

Schreiner delivered the report. CDV grants have been awarded. Cultural
Participation grants are going out next week. There is a meetup with Coalitions
tomorrow focused on end of year fundraising, and a meeting with counties who had
to cease grantmaking during the pandemic.

Partner grants have mostly gone out. Reviewed the breakdown of where the

$181,904 in cooperative grant awards are being distributed, and awards for Live
events ARPA funding distribution. Yamasaki asked where the counties money went

Page 6 of 69



who couldn’t distribute their awards. Schreiner said the money goes back into the
Trust fund. Yamasaki also asked for board invites to the coalition meetings.

A 10-minute break was called at 10:26 am. Meeting resumed at 10:38 am.

Celebrate Oregon License Plate Sales Update

Kikel delivered the report. Approximately 800 license plates are sold per month,
yielding about $70,000 revenue monthly. A marketing campaign was implemented
to increase sales. The Department of Justice determined that the Trust’s statute
does not grant us the legal right to sell merchandise, so we are looking into
giveaways instead.

Reviewed the marketing report. Hired Watson Creative as consultants to assist in
our digital marketing efforts. Partnership with Eugene Symphony, 4-part radio
program that we sponsored. Here is Oregon Partnership, invested $25,000.

End of Year Campaign Update

Schreiner said there are 70 upcoming board presentations and that it’s the most
effective way to bring in donations to the Trust. Also giving orientations to others
(i.e., Trust board members) so they can give presentations too. A mailer to
subgrantees and license plate owners went out. Fleming is working on prospective
corporate donor list; about 200 letters will go out.

Kikel is contracting 2 Impact Story writers.

Fleming said donations are down $100,000, but this is in comparison to last year
when the Trust received a $250,000 bequest. The Spring mailing was a success
and brought in approximately 350 donations. She recently gave a presentation at
Montavilla Jazz and received a $1000 donation. Bell & Funk is working with Bend
Give Guide to make sure we’ll be able to receive donations. Yamasaki said she might
be able to secure gifts from Friends of Crater Lake for prize giveaways for
attending presentations.

Kramer promoted the idea of having short stories for icons on license plate.
Price said the Oregon Coast Arts Bus unveiling was a wonderful experience.

Strategic Planning and DEIA Process

Schreiner delivered her report. DEIA goals will be integrated into the strategic plan,
which is also in the works for a June 2023 completion date. Role of the plan and
goals were discussed at the last meeting. A mission statement for the plan was
requested; Andries agreed to work on this. Murphy said the committee is diverse

3

Page 7 of 69



and has had open conversations. It will be a living document and will be reviewed
annually with the board. Schreiner put out an open call for board members to join
our various committees.

Executive Director Report

Rogers delivered the report. Two of three Oregon gubernatorial candidates
attended recent Cultural Advocacy Coalition of Oregon (CACO) meetings. Candidate
Drazan did not attend. CACQO’s $200 million in lottery bond funding for the Trust
was discussed. The Trust is requesting a change in its current administrative cap.
The Arts Commission is asking for an increase in general funds. and the CACO is
seeking an additional $50 million in pandemic relief efforts. The Trust/Arts
Commission is working with CACO to develop a survey for organizations to identify
their pandemic-era losses that are yet to be addressed. The Legislature has an
opportunity to do more bonding in this biennium than ever before. Funding would be
administered to the Trust and then disbursed out Coalitions on a per capita basis to
regrant, which could be problematic from Rogers’ perspective.

Kramer worries that the legislature won’t give the Trust money for a long time if we
get the $200 million; they may think we’re covered. Concerns over CACO making
decisions without consulting the Trust Board or leadership were discussed. The
Trust administrative cap increase should be the number one priority presented to
the legislature. Discussions ensued about concerns with the lottery bond
legislation.

The NEA tour with new chair Dr. Maria Rosario Jackson was a success and included
various cultural site tours and meetings

Board Member and Staff Updates
Fleming will mail donation remit envelopes to board members upon request.

The next Board Meeting is February 23, 2023. Updates on the Trust’s fundraising
campaign will be provided. The board meeting schedule is not currently set post
February 2023. Yamasaki advocated for in-person meetings. Rogers said the spring
meeting can be held at Chehalem Cultural Center.

Public Comment
None.

Adjourn
Price adjourned the meeting at 12:13 pm.

Page 8 of 69



to the Oregon Cultural Trust
February 23, 2023

~. Oregon Arts Commission Partner Report

OREGON ARTS
COMMISSION

Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus and Event

Funded by Western States Arts Federation (WESTAF), Thomas Lauderdale, the founder of
Pink Martini, and Hunter Noack, the founder of In A Landscape, will perform as special
guests at the Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus Launch Event, scheduled from 5:30 to 7 p.m.
on Monday, Feb. 27, at Salem’s Elsinore Theatre. The Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus
Launch Event is free and open to the public, but registration is required.

The bi-partisan Arts and Culture Caucus, coordinated by Rep. Rob Nosse (D-Portland), was
formed in recognition of the vital role arts and culture play in the livability and prosperity
of Oregon communities — and in enriching the lives of Oregonians. The Caucus also
includes Sen. Dick Anderson (R-Lincoln City); Rep. Janelle Bynum (D-Clackamas); Rep.
Maxine Dexter (D-Portland); Rep. David Gomberg (D-Otis); Sen. Bill Hansell (R-Athena);
Rep. Annessa Hartman (D-Gladstone); Rep. John Lively (D-Springfield); Rep. Pam Marsh
(D-Ashland); and Sen. Deb Patterson (D-Salem). Caucus membership is expected to
expand.

Creative and Cultural Districts

A Creative or Cultural District is an area with a high concentration of arts and/or cultural
facilities and events that serve as anchors of attraction within their community. The
district reflects the community’s unique cultural heritage through its built environment
and history, showcasing the region’s artists and cultural traditions while increasing
social engagement and visitors. Creative & Cultural Districts are found in all types of
communities from small and rural to large and urban.

Districts are led by the community and provide community-driven solutions advance
their goals and address local problems and needs. Often communities create districts as
way to retain and recruit artists, beautify downtowns, encourage visitation, and engage
and elevate underserved communities. Communities will have increased success in
reaching their goals with this type of intentional planning among a diverse group of
stakeholders.

A state-designated Creative & Cultural Districts program would allow the Oregon Arts
Commission to support communities in achieving their economic, community
development and tourism goals related by providing technical assistance, marketing and
grants. Thanks to funding from the Cultural Partners, the Arts Commaission is working
with Cultural Planning Group to model a statewide program. Informed by dozens of
interviews with stakeholders, research into existing programs in the US, and in
consultation with other statewide cultural programs (e.g. Main Street Program), Cultural

775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200
Salem, OR 97301-1280
(503) 986-0082

Page 9 of 69



Planning Group has created a program framework that the Arts Commission will utilize
to implement the program. Over the next few years, we are exploring piloting this
program in a few communities while building a technical assistance program for all
communities across the state.

Poetry Out Loud

Hosted by artist and spoken word poet, MOsley WOtta, Oregon’s Statewide Poetry Out
Loud Contest will be held on Saturday March 11" at 1pm at Allied Video Productions in
Salem, which is the first live event since 2019. Fifteen schools from across the state are
participating in Poetry Out Loud this year.

New Staff- Ryan Burghard

The Arts Commission recently hired Ryan Burghard as our new Public Art & Artist
Program Coordinator. Ryan coordinates our Art in Public Places Program and grant
programs for artists (Career Opportunity Grant and Individual Artist Fellowships.)

Ryan spent over a decade working with the Oregon Arts Commission, focusing on the
acquisition and commissioning of public art on behalf of the state. Ryan also served as an
assistant professor at Oregon College of Art and Craft, a mentor in PNCA's Applied Craft
and Design (AC+D) program and an instructor at Portland Community College. He was an
integral part of developing the Curator-in-Residence program at Disjecta Contemporary
Arts Center (now Oregon Contemporary) as program manager from 2013 to 2017.

Upcoming Grant Deadlines

e Career Opportunity Grant- Deadline March 8, 2023
Career Opportunity grants range from $500 to $2,000 and enable individual Oregon
artists to take advantage of unique opportunities to enhance their career. Up to an
additional $9,000 is available from The Ford Family Foundation for established visual
artists.

e Operating Support Grant- Deadline: March 28, 2023
Operating Support awards typically range from $3,000 to $30,000 and contribute to the
full range of programming of Oregon's nonprofit arts organizations with annual cash
operating budgets of more than $150,000.

e Small Operating Grant- Deadline: March 28, 2023
The Small Operating Grant to provide operating support for locally based arts
organizations with annual cash operating expenses of less than $150,000.

e Arts Learning Grant- Deadline May 2, 2023
Arts Learning grants provide $10,000 matching support to arts organizations for high-
quality projects that provide a responsive opportunity for learning in and through the
arts to benefit K-12 students.

775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200
Salem, OR 97301-1280
(503) 986-0082

Page 10 of 69



e Art Access Reimbursement- Rolling application
Access Reimbursement grants range from $200 to $1,000 and offset expenses incurred
by Oregon'’s nonprofit arts organizations to ensure public access to all individuals
who want to participate.

775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200
Salem, OR 97301-1280
(503) 986-0082

Page 11 of 69



Parks and Recreation Department

re On Oregon Heritage Commission

725 Summer St. NE, Suite C

. Salem, OR 97301-1271
Tina Kotek, Governor (503) 986-0685

www.oregonheritage.org

Oregon Heritage Commission Report

Oregon Heritage Summit

The biannual Oregon Heritage Summit, April 27 & 28, 2023 will be online and the focus theme
is volunteers. The first day will offer inspiration, ideas and connections and the second day will
be practical training. Prizes (book and volunteer appreciation grants) will be awarded by random
drawing of participants. The theme was in response to heritage organizations naming volunteer
needs as a high priority.

Oregon Main Street Annual Report Released

The 2022 Oregon Main Street Annual Report shares programmatic highlights as well as annual
and cumulative revitalization statistics from communities participating in the Main Street Track
of the Oregon Main Street Network.

Data from the 38 communities submitting quarterly reports in 2022 showed there were:
e 521 net new jobs created
e $34,064,038 private sector reinvestment in building improvement projects
e $32,514.507 public sector reinvestment in public improvement projects
e 152 building rehab projects completed
e 92 net new business openings
e 18 business expansions
e 521 net new jobs
e 25,450 volunteer hours given by community members to improve their downtowns

One of the highlights featured in the report is the creation of a pilot Rural Regional Main Street
effort in partnership with the Oregon Frontier Chamber of Commerce with participating
communities in Sherman, Gilliam, and Wheeler Counties. This is helping connect very small,
rural communities with Oregon Main Street. The report also features the list of 2022 Excellence
on Main Award recipients, including the inaugural Open Door Award which went to the
Lebanon Downtown Association’s Family Pride Day. This award goes to a Main Street that has
demonstrated a commitment to creating an environment that is welcoming and inviting to all
through programs, outreach, or other efforts.

Oregon Heritage Grant Applications open
Many of the Oregon Heritage grant applications are open.

Oregon Heritage MentorCorps program seeking mentors

Our new approach to managing the program is working well. We have several organizations
currently assigned a mentor. We are going to begin recruitment for additional mentors mhghengxs
month. Please visit https://www.oregon.gov/oprd/OH/pages/mentorcorps.aspx for more




information about MentorCorps.

NOTE: The idea for this program came from the partner grant tours organized by the Oregon
Cultural Trust. We discussed the capacity issues of the organizations showing up in the grant
applications and how to help them improve. The initial implementation of and the reorganization
of this important program was funded in part by our Cultural Trust partner funds. We would be
happy to provide a full report on the results of this program to the board if desired.

Commission Kicks of Oregon Heritage Plan Evaluation

The Oregon Heritage Commission has developed an evaluation process to attempt to see how
heritage organizations throughout the state are moving forward the goals of the Oregon Heritage
Plan. The 2020 Heritage Plan is a call to action for heritage efforts to unite around common
goals. The Oregon Heritage Commission invited individuals and organizations to discuss these
goals, consider how they align with institutional and regional opportunities, and join the
Commission in this work. Together, individual steps will add up to important outcomes for the
state resulting in more stories told, more people served, and more sustainable heritage
organizations.

Using surveys and interviews with organizations from around the state, the commission will
track metrics related to the plan goals over the next three years. This evaluation effort is a pilot to
learn how we might track this work, it is funded in part by the Oregon Heritage Commission
partner funds.

Commission Kicks of Oregon Heritage Plan Evaluation

The OPRD budget includes $20 million in lottery bond funds for the Oregon Main Street
Revitalization Grant. This is an increase of $10 million dollars compared to the last biennium.

Work continues...

e Unused upper-floor study

e Oregon Main Street Impact Study

e Economic Impact of Heritage Study

e NW Digital Heritage HUB

e Disaster mitigation planning for historic resources — grant to FEMA

Page 13 of 69



0. Hm.

Oregon
Humanities

To the Oregon Cultural Trust Board of Directors,

At a recent Oregon Humanities board of directors meeting, we asked our board members to
think about something they are proud of from the past three years. Two specific comments
caught my attention. One person said they were impressed and proud that Oregon
Humanities felt stable throughout the past three years, was able to pivot almost entirely
in-person programming to virtual programming, and find relevant, meaningful, and connective
topics and approaches to keep Oregonians engaged. This echoed throughout the room. The
other comment that resonated with me was “the people”. The work you’ll read about below is
due to this solid team of people working to highlight folks in our networks, develop new
networks, and make connections across Oregon through our work. It's a pleasure to be a part
of that team, to be a Oregon Cultural Trust Partner, and we are proud to share this work with
you.

We are currently setting up meetings in Washington, DC with Oregon’s congressional
delegation for “Humanities on the Hill” which takes place March 8 this year. We'll be making
the case for strong funding to the National Endowment for the Humanities and the National
Endowment for the Arts and showing how federal funding makes its way to all parts of Oregon
through the Federal/State Partnership and the work of Oregon Humanities and partners.

We're also sending letters in support of three big culture bills in Oregon that the Cultural
Advocacy Coalition of Oregon is working on: $50m in COVID relief; a large capital construction
slate; and $200M in lottery bond funds to reach the original goal for the corpus.

We are welcoming a new member to the Oregon Humanities board of directors, Darci
Hanning, with the Oregon State Library.

Our Public Program Grants are currently open and accepting applications (deadline March 10).
This year we have just over $100,000 to award and continue to focus on our goal of 60% of the
funding going to our two priority groups: organizations in rural Oregon and/or Black,
Indigenous, and People of Color led organizations. Please help spread word of this opportunity
in your networks. We are currently in process awarding our Consider This Mini Grants for Rural
Libraries.

Our Consider This series on the theme of People, Place, and Power continues. We hope to
see you in-person or perhaps watching the live stream for these upcoming events. If you'd like

Page 14 of 69


http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/public-program-grants-2/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/consider-this-mini-grant/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/consider-this-mini-grant/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-people-place-and-power/

some complimentary tickets to either event, please let us know by emailing
jennifer@oregonhumanities.org
e March 7, 2023: Kiese Laymon, Alberta Rose Theatre, 3000 NE Alberta St., Portland.
7:00 p.m.
e April 18, 2023: Mdénica Guzman, Alberta Rose Theatre, 3000 NE Alberta St., Portland.
7:00 p.m.

This round of Dear Stranger invites folks to write about things they keep hidden & things
they’re working to uncover. We encourage you to consider joining in this statewide letter
exchange. The themes are connected to our Oregon Humanities Magazine and the current
issue on “Underground.” If you don’t already receive this free magazine and would like to have
it delivered to your home, please complete this form to subscribe.

Our podcast, The Detour, continues to explore challenging questions with writers, educators,
artists, and activists. We're also airing in partnership with several community radio stations
around the state. Please feel free to follow/subscribe, recommend to your people and
networks, and tell us what can be improved.

The Conversation Project is gearing up to announce some new topics and facilitators this
spring. Our program, So Much Together, was developed in 2021 and has been entirely virtual
until this season where we have several events taking place in-person around Oregon. This
year’s Humanity in Perspective (HIP) course moves back to in-person (Portland) for our spring
term offering, HIP has been online since spring of 2020. If you know of any Portland folks that
might be interested in this free, college-credit course for adults, please connect us.

We just wrapped up three very different training events aimed at developing skills in leading
reflective conversations. We were in Colorado training folks with Colorado Humanities, we had
our regular open training, and we trained members of the air-quality department of Oregon
DEQ. These facilitation trainings take place regularly in Oregon both online and at locations
around the state.

Events are regularly added to our calendar and we hope to see you at one in the future. If
you’re downtown and want to connect, we’d love to welcome you to our office at 610 SW Alder
Street, Suite 1111, Portland, OR 97205. Thanks, as always, for Oregon Cultural Trust's
partnership and support.

If you'd like to connect with us, please email Jennifer Alkezweeny, program director, at
jennifer@oregohumanities.org

Page 15 of 69


mailto:jennifer@oregonhumanities.org
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-with-kiese-laymon/
https://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-with-monica-guzman/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/other-projects/dear-stranger/
http://oregonhumanities.org/rll/magazine/
http://oregonhumanities.org/rll/magazine/subscribe/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/rll/podcast/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/community-conversations/the-conversation-project/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/so-much-together/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/humanity-in-perspective/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/services/
http://oregonhumanities.org/events/
mailto:jennifer@oregohumanities.org

The Next 125 capital campaign

OHS announced The Next 125 capital campaign on December 17, 2022. Focused on
education, preservation, and access, the funding secured through this campaign will
support the creation of a new core exhibition on the history of Portland, support and
resources for teachers statewide with an emphasis on new Ethnic Studies standards and
rural communities, upgrades to our digital history projects, and enhancements to the
storage of our priceless collections. The $10million campaign is three-quarters funded,
including a new $3million endowment to support the salary of the Boyle Family Executive
Director. Several campaign projects are fully funded already, but we have many
opportunities for public, corporate, and foundation support of this important work. The
campaign is scheduled to conclude on OHS’s 125th birthday, in December 2023.

Public Programs

The 2023 Hatfield Series continued with Nina Totenberg speaking to over 1,200
attendees at the Schnitzer and hundreds more online on February 2; Mae Ngai, Douglas
Brinkley, and Peniel Joseph, will present in March, April, and May with tickets available
both virtually and in-person. Educators are invited to apply to join a book group to
discuss Joesph’s The Third Reconstruction and attend the program and reception. Our
all-virtual “Historians and the News” series continued on January 10 with Dr. Jeremi Suri,
and we will host Dr. Beverly Gage on March 6 to talk about government surveillance and
free-speech rights. The November 2022 “Human Experience in the Oregon Great Basin”
public symposium was a big success, with over 100 attendees on the first day about 80
on the second, including 20 educators from a variety of school districts. We are working
with tribal knowledge-holders and other presenters to bring the work to publication in a
future issue of OHQ. In-person programs have resumed in earnest, with a fun evening on
February 8 with Mel Brown, interviewed about his time growing up in Portland and
drumming for Motown by Tim DuRoche to a standing room only crowd that included the
Mayor of Northeast Portland, Mr. Paul Knauls. Keep an eye on the OHS e-digest and
social media for other upcoming programs, including a book celebration on April 6 with
Dr. Carmen Thompson, author of The Making of American Whiteness.

Exhibitions

Currently on display in OHS’s Brooks Julian galleries are Motown: The Sound of Young
America (on loan from the Grammy Museum), which closes March 26; and Our
Unfinished Past: The Oregon Historical Society at 125, which closes December 17. Due to
water damage sustained during the last winter ice storm, two exhibitions,  Am An
American and The Odyssey of the Historic Jantzen Beach Carousel will be closed as
OHS repairs the galleries. OHS’s traveling exhibitions, which are booked at venues

Page 16 of 69


https://www.ohs.org/events/hatfield-historians-forum.cfm
https://www.ohs.org/events/historians-and-the-news-beverly-gage.cfm

across the state, continue to be popular: The Call of Public Service: The Life and Legacy
of Mark O. Hatfield; Oregon Voices; Many Happy Returns: 50 Years of the Oregon Bottle
Bill; and Brave in the Attempt: Celebrating 50 Years of Special Olympics Oregon.

Research Library

OHS’s newly renovated research library is open for walk-in researchers, who are
encouraged to contact libreference@ohs.org in advance so the reference staff can help
plan for relevant materials to be available. The library is free and open to everyone!
Library staff have created research topical guides on “House and Building History” and
“LGBTQ Community Collections” and will be adding more guides in the future. OHS has
hired project staff to process the Yasui Brothers Co. collection project, including
contractors who are reading and recording the substantial portion of the collection that is
written in pre-WWII Japanese (funded by LSTA). There will be a teacher workshop and
public presentation on this history in Hood River on April 15, 2023, created in partnership
with the Japanese American Museum of Oregon. OHS Archivist Jeffrey A. Hayes
published a piece in the Winter 2022 issue of the Oregon Historical Quarterly about
recent revisions to the Marcus and Narcissa Whitman collection guide; the project began
as an effort to migrate existing collection guides into a new database but also provided
an opportunity to reconsider descriptive practices in collection guides that might exclude
marginalized people or present information in an incomplete, inaccurate, or harmful way.
Library staff continue to regularly welcome school groups, who learn about how to
access the unique materials held in the library collections.

Education

OHS has scheduled the 2023 Oregon History Day contest to be held in person on April
29 at Willamette University and expects the national contest to be held near Washington,
DC, in June. If you are interested in volunteering to judge students’ work, send an email
to history.day@ohs.org. OHS offers scholarships that ensure contest fees and travel
expenses do not present barriers for any students participating in the project. The
elementary-school readers Portland: Our Community and Portland Since Time
Immemorial are printed and have been delivered to PPS and Beaverton School District.
We are excited to hear about how they are working in classrooms and hope to work with
PPS to facilitate translation into other languages in the coming months. OHS education
staff have offered professional development workshops virtually, in Gresham and in
eastern Oregon during recent months, with more scheduled for this year. Staff are also
updating the content of the Traveling Trunks, including by working with tribes and tribal
members to ensure that Indigenous history in the trunks is accurate, aligns with Tribal
History / Shared History, and includes concepts and information that tribes prioritize for

Page 17 of 69


mailto:libreference@ohs.org
https://www.ohs.org/research-and-library/research-guides/index.cfm
mailto:history.day@ohs.org

educational materials. Staff have also begun working with Oregon Black Pioneers to
develop new educational materials related to Black history in Oregon.

Page 18 of 69



#%h the S48
Footsteps
ofthe Ancestors

Economic Impacts and
Value of Oregon’s Heritage

Organizations and Events
ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING




This page left intentionally blank

Page 20 of 69



¢

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ings

ind

Summary Of F

on:

Introduct
The Economic Value Of Oregon’s Heritage ..........cccccoeuuee.

Economic Contributions Of

.

Part 1:

.13

's Heritage Organizations And Tourism ............

Oregon

7] Al

's Heritage .....cocovevevcuncnnee

Economic Benefits Of Oregon

| Appendix

Technica

/f

i
[/

I}

/]

i
]

—-

Iy

(]

i

|

i
(]

i

iy

-—m

n..




This project is supported through funding
from the Oregon Cultural Trust

Page 22 of 69



SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Local and statewide organizations engaged in protecting,
preserving, and sharing Oregon’s heritage contribute to
Oregon’s economy in important ways. The first part of this
report quantifies some of the economic value Oregon’s
heritage activities and resources support, through the
employment, income, and tourism spending of heritage
organizations and traditions across the state. These
estimates capture just a part of the broader economic
importance of Oregon’s heritage: the second part of this
report provides illustrations of the many different ways
heritage enhances the economic well-being of Oregonians.

Heritage Organizations support

Economic Activity throughout Oregon

Our analysis finds that heritage organizations directly
supported 1,600 employees and labor income of $47
million in 2019. Those organizations, in turn, support
other businesses in the community through purchases of
local goods and services and spending from employees,
amounting to 2,147 total jobs in Oregon and $77.7
million in supported labor income. Altogether, heritage
organizations supported $196.3 million in total economic
activity during 2019.

Heritage Activities support Tourism

During 2019, Heritage organizations drew 2 million
visitors to their community from around the state, region,
and across the United States. Heritage traditions drew an
additional 1 million people to Oregon’s communities to
experience and participate in Oregon’s cultural heritage
events. All nine regions drew at least 50,000 visitors
(to organizations and events), and six drew more than
175,000 each.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

scan your family photos,
tell a short family story,

i preserve your family history
share your proud hentay:

Heritage Tourism is an Important
Contributor for Local Economic Development

Tourism supports local economies by supporting local
vendors, including shops, restaurants, and hotels. In 2019,
visitor spending directly supported 910 jobs in Oregon’s
leisure and hospitality sector. After accounting for the
additional economic activity supported by hospitality
businesses and workers, heritage tourism supported a total
of 1,325 jobs and $55 million in labor income resulting in
$147 million in total economic activity in Oregon.

Oregon’s Economic Contribution of Heritage
Organizations and Traditions, 2019

Heritage Organizations Heritage Visitation

Impact

Jobs 1,599 2,147 1,325
Labor Income $46.7 $77.7 $31.9 $55.2
Value Added $58.2 $114.9 $45.2 $83.9
Output $97.5 $196.4 $77.6 $147.0

Source: ECONorthwest

Page 23 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 5



SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Heritage Activities are Valuable
Community Assets

Heritage activities shape the social and cultural landscape
of communities around Oregon. They produce a wealth
of economic benefits that—while difficult to quantify—
contribute to Oregonians’ economic well-being. Oregon’s
heritage traditions bring people together in shared purpose
and celebration. Heritage organizations collect, preserve,
transmit, and interpret Oregon’s rich history and culture:
thelandmarks, stories, and artifacts that help shape current
and future generations’ sense of place and identity. And
heritage programs like historic downtowns and certified
local governments help institutions leverage financial and
other resources that contribute to the betterment of public
spaces, more effectively bring people together, and build
knowledge and skills that reach beyond heritage alone.

Pt T T Lo

Page 24 of 69
m‘% ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 6
CONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING




INTRODUCTION

THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE

Heritage and the Economy

Societies and economies are built on foundations of
capital: human capital represents population’s collective
knowledge and talent; natural capital provides amenities
and resources; physical capital adds roads, utilities, and
buildings; social capital is the institutional and networking
glue that binds communities together. Heritage (or
cultural) capital extends from the other forms of capital,
is woven throughout the foundation, and is passed from
generation to generation. It's found in fairs, festivals, and
cultural celebrations. It’s conveyed in dance, songs, stories,
and competitions. It’s in parks, cemeteries, on main streets,
historic buildings, library collections, and museums.
Heritage capital connects people to their past, animates
the present, and provides clues about where a community

may be headed in the future.

The Oregon Heritage Commission (the Commission) is
charged with championing resources, recognition, and
funding for preserving and interpreting Oregon’s past.
From an economic perspective, heritage is a public good
and shared broadly. Oregonians ascribe a variety of values
to their heritage—economic value, political value, aesthetic
value, educational value, cultural value, and spiritual value.
If stories are forgotten or historic places and repositories
of historic collections are inaccessible, value is lost.

Preserving heritage requires an investment of time and
money. The Commissionis charged withinspiring publicand
private investment. To attract investment, the importance
of heritage must be clarified. That’s the purpose of this
report. The Commission hired ECONorthwest to assess
one domain of heritage value (economic contribution),
and more specifically requested estimates of impacts of
Oregon’s heritage-related organizations, sites, and activity
onlocaleconomies. The first section of thisreport describes
the findings of this “economic contributions” analysis.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

These second section of this report details the many other
ways that Oregon’s heritage resources generate economic
benefits that are not captured in the monetary transactions
of organizations and visitors. Much of this dimension of
economic value is difficult to quantify—if quantified, it
would likely be many times greater than the economic
contribution—but it cannot be ignored.

The intended audience for this report is broad and includes
the users of heritage sites and activities, volunteers, elected
officials, and business, philanthropic, nonprofit, and other
community leaders.

How this Report measures
Economic Value

While the economic impact totals reported
here are impressive, they are a subset of the full
economic value and are do not capture value in
other domains (e.g., historic, cultural/symbolic,
spiritual, aesthetic) which provide important
but difficult to quantify social and economic
value to Oregon’s communities.

The first section of this report quantifies
of heritage
organizations, heritage traditions, and the
effect of visitor spending. The second section
qualitatively describes the economic benefits of

the economic contributions

a broader set of heritage resources.

Page 25 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 7



INTRODUCTION: THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'’S HERITAGE

Oregon’s Heritage Landscape

This report evaluated economic activity in heritage
collecting organizations (“heritage organizations” e.g.,
libraries, museums, historical sites) and tradition events
(“heritage traditions”) (see Figure 1; page 12 lists the
heritage traditions; the Technical Appendix lists the
heritage organizations included in the analysis). Oregon
Heritage, of Oregon Parks and Recreation Department
(OPRD), assists those preserving and sharing the state’s
heritage and promotes the goals of the Oregon Heritage
Plan. Heritage organizations cover the full geography of
the state from Ontario’s Four Rivers Cultural Center and
Museum to Astoria’s Barview County Park and Curry
County’s Historical Society and Museum to Joseph’s
Center for Culture.

Many organizations focus on the heritage of a specific
geographic area while others focus on specialized
topics including science, technology, art, paleontology,

Figure 1:

Heritage Organizations and Events (Traditions)
included in Analysis

Heritage Organization Type

@ Museum
@ Tradition

@ Historical Societ y O Other

@ Library

Source: ECONorthwest using data from OPRD;
Internal Revenue Service.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

anthropology, logging, smoke jumping, ranching, shipping,
fishing, firefighting, mining, banking, mountaineering,
aircraft, spacecraft, railroads, motorsports, and horse
drawn transportation. Population focused organizations
like the Museum at Warm Springs, Oregon Black Pioneers,
the Oregon Jewish Museum, the Polish Library Association,
and John Day’s Kam Wah Chung Park broaden the diversity
of perspective on the state’s heritage. Organizations range
insize from volunteer-run community historicsitesin Fossil
and Mill City to the Portland Art Museum.

The Commission also fosters and coordinates with 25
longstanding heritage traditions including the Astoria’s
Regatta (1894), Portland Rose Festival (1907), the
Pendleton Round-Up (1910), Medford’s Pear Blossom
Festival (1954), Woodburn's Fiesta Mexicana (1964), and
the Mother’s Day Powwow at the University of Oregon
(1969).

AH CHUNG 8CL.

Page 26 of 69
ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 8



INTRODUCTION: THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'’S HERITAGE

Measuring Economic Value of Oregon’s
Heritage Organizations &
Traditional Activities

Footprints, Visits, Tourism,
and Spillovers

ECONorthwest measured economic impacts associated
with Oregon’s heritage sites and events during 2019
through two key channels: 1) the economic footprint
of 282 heritage organizations for which records were
available and 2) the visitation and tourism impacts related
tothose organizations and the 25 heritage/tradition events
(see Figure 2).

Conceptually, measuring organizational economic
footprints is straightforward. The entities, mostly private
non-profit entities, earn revenue from private donations,
philanthropic grants, public appropriations, and entry or
admissions charges. The revenue is used to hire staff and
purchase materials and supplies. Organizations with any
appreciable amount of revenue report their footprints to
the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

Figure 2:

Economic Contributions in 2020
and 2021 and COVID-19 Closures

The information in this report was evaluated using
2019 data due to anomalies in 2020 from the
COVID-19 pandemic. Many heritage organizations
and traditions were temporarily closed or
postponed during 2020 and 2021.

Due to the closures, reduced capacity, and lower
visitation, we anticipate that the economic
contributions of Oregon’s heritage organizations
and traditions followed a similar trend as the
broader hospitality and tourism sector.

Recent data for 2022 suggest visitation and
expenditures are returning to historical levels,
thoughatightlabormarket,inflation,andincomplete
data complicate those estimates. Despite that
uncertainty, we expect that organizational and
visitor spending will return to historical levels in the
next few years.

Relationship Between Heritage Organizations and Heritage Visitor/Tourism Impacts

Organizational Economic Footprint

Grants/ Tickets/Admissions/
Donations Sales
|
|

Employment Heritage Organization
Supply Chain
Spending/ Activities

Employment

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

Value to
Community

Heritage Visitation/Tourism Spillover Impacts

Trip Spending

Non-Local Visitors
Consumer
Surplus

Local Visitors

Consumer Surplus

Visitors and Non-Visitors

Supply Chain
Spending/

Employment

Existence Value
Cultural Value

Amenity Value
Education/Research Value

Economic Value

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 9

Page 27 of 69



INTRODUCTION: THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'’S HERITAGE

The organization’s presence in a community, together with
its supported activities or events, set a chain of economic
activity into motion—some easily quantified and other
less so. When a museum, library, or historical site opens its
doors to visitors several things happen. Local community
members stop by to learn, reflect, and use resources. In
some cases, sites charge admission, but many sites are
free. Additionally, most heritage sites will attract visitors
from outside the community, and in those cases, they
bring new dollars from outside the local economy. Those
non-local visitors may also spend money in grocery stores,
cafes, restaurants, pubs, and motels. And having served the
visitors, those grocery stores, cafes, restaurants, pubs, and
motels then re-stock their supplies.

Local and non-local visitors almost always get more than
they pay for (e.g., the admission is $2 and they would
have happily paid $5). The difference between an actual
charge and a visitor’s willingness to pay is called consumer
surplus. Finally, visitors and non-visitors also enjoy other,
non-monetized value of heritage sites. One that fits in
the economic domain is existence value, or the amount
of money someone would be willing to pay to keep a site
or event in place even if they never planned on visiting it.
For example, some Oregonians would be willing to pay
an annual subscription to ensure the continuation of the
iconic Pendleton Round Up and Happy Canyon Pageant
even if they didn’t anticipate a trip to Eastern Oregon.

Many other sociocultural values of heritage site fall outside
the economic domain and are harder to quantify, including
historic, cultural/symbolic, social, spiritual, and aesthetic

values (see Figure 3).

Figure 3:
Non-Economic, Sociocultural Values of Heritage Sites
and Events

= / Historical values convey, embody, or
stimulate a relation with or reaction to

— the past.
of o Cultural/symbolic  values  build
u‘y cultural affiliation in the present and
() can be political, ethnic, or related to

other means of living together (e.g.,
work- or craft-related).

Social values enable and facilitate
social connections and networks.

Spiritual values are intrinsic to some
heritage sites associated with organized
religion but can also encompass
secular experiences of wonder and awe
provoked by heritage places.

Aesthetic value extends from the visual

Og

Source: de la Torre, Marta. (2002) Assessing the Values of
Cultural Heritage. The Getty Conservation Trust. Los Angeles, CA.

qualities of heritage places and activities.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

Page 28 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 10



INTRODUCTION: THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'’S HERITAGE

These data help characterize the economic activity

Quantifying the Economic Activity directly tied to the heritage organizations/events and

Associated with Heritage Sites and Events

the visitor activity they generate. But that direct activity
extends or “multiplies” as heritage organizations purchase

ECONorthwest used three key data sources to measure ~ Materials and supplies for their operations, and employees

economic activity associated with Oregon’s heritage  and visitors spend money elsewhere in the local economy

organizations and events:

and support additional jobs.

m IRSForm 990 submissions from heritage organizations.
The Form 990 submissions, when accessible, provided . *
_ _ . P Economic Impact Terminology
information on revenues, funding sources, employment
counts, and volunteerism at heritage organizations. Economic impacts are classified by their relationship to
Usable Form 990 information was available for 106 the activity in question. For this analysis, the three types
organizations—or 38 percent of the all the organizations of impacts are defined to capture the economic activity
in the Oregon Heritage database. Organizations of heritage organizations and traditions as follows:

luded f the F 990 lysi ith
exciu e.z rom the Form .ana ysis were elther very ¢ Direct impacts are the spending, jobs, and
small (i.e., !ess than $50,000 in an.nual revenue),. ha?i a _%(_ employment directly supported by Oregon's
smaller heritagefunctionembeddedinalarge organization heritage organizations and traditions and can
(e.g., the Knight Library at the University of Oregon), were be considered the inputs for the model.
duplicative (e.g., some organizations file multiple reports
under differ names), or could not be identified on the Indirect impacts are the economic effects
IRS site. supported by business purchases from

heritage organizations and traditions. These
m Visitor counts from the proprietary Placer.ai indirect effects are sometimes also referred to
software platform. The Placer.ai data provided visitor as supply chain effects.
counts at museums, libraries, historic sites, and events. . . .
o Induced impacts are the changes in regional
The Placer.ai visits data are generated from cellphone .

o household spending caused by changes
activity and use state-of-art technology but are of RNl eholaNico eI he e RareR e nically
limited use if a heritage site is co-located with other referred to as consumption effects.
functions in a multi-story building (i.e., heritage activity
within the building cannot be disentangled from other Output represents the value of goods and
activity). Also, the data set is built from U.S. phone S e ol et e (Bl oeeest sk

.. . .. . .. of economic activity.
activity and will miss international visitors.

Labor income consists of employee
m Visitor spending estimates from Portland-based RO

ECONorthwest

Dean Runyan and Associates. Every year, the firm
estimated the economic impact of tourism in Oregon
and calculates visitor spending by commodity
purchased (e.g., accommodations, food services, retail
sales), and average per person night expenditures by

accommodation type.

ECONOMICS -

FINANCE - PLANNING

compensation and proprietary income and is

a subset of output.

Jobs, according to IMPLAN'’s methodology, are
measured in terms of full-year-equivalents

(FYE). A job can be full-time or part-time,

seasonal, or permanent.

Page 29 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 11



INTRODUCTION: THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF OREGON'’S HERITAGE

HERITAGE R

1L MR. SPOCK
Tradition -

= |

Designated Oregon Heritage Traditions

The Oregon Heritage Tradition designation recognizes events more than 50 years old that represent what it means
to be an Oregonian. Designated events are unique locally, regionally, and statewide. In short, these events add to the
livability and identity of the state.

Oregon State Fair, Salem (1858) Portland Greek Festival (1952)

Wasco County Fair and Rodeo, Tygh Valley (1885) Pear Blossom Festival, Medford (1954)

Linn County Pioneer Picnic, Brownsville (1887) Pacific City Dory Days (1959)

Astoria Regatta (1894) Bohemia Mining Days, Cottage Grove (1959)
Clackamas County Fair, Canby (1907) Scandinavian Festival, Junction City (1961)
Portland Rose Festival (1907) Cannon Beach Sandcastle Contest (1964)
Lebanon Strawberry Festival (1909) Woodburn Fiesta Mexicana (1964)

Pendleton Round-Up (1910) Astoria Scandinavian Midsummer Festival (1968)
Happy Canyon Pageant and Wild West Show (1916) University of Oregon Mother’s Day Powwow (1969)
Portland Midsummer Festival (1928) Oregon Country Fair (1969)

Fourth of July Pet Parade, Bend (1932) Great Oregon Steam-Up, Brooks (1970)

Klamath Basin Potato Festival, Merrill (1937) The Christmas Ships Parade (1954)

Brookings Harbor Azalea Festival (1939) Aumsville Corn Festival (1968)

Source: https:.//www.oregon.gov/oprd/OH/Pages/Heritage-Designations.aspx

Page 30 of 69
ECONorthweSt ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 12
ECONOMICS + FINANCE - PLANNING




PART 1

ECONOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS OF OREGON'S HERITAGE OR-
GANIZATIONS AND TOURISM

We present economic contributions through the two
mutually exclusively areas: the economic footprint of
heritage organizations and the impacts of the visitor
spending that is associated with heritage sites and events.

Economic Footprint of Heritage

Organizations

m Heritage organizations directly supported more
than 2,100 jobs and generated nearly $200 million
in economic output. The Form 990s showed reported
about 1,600 employees and labor income of $47 million
directly in heritage organizations in 2019. But the
organizations bought materials and supplies, and their
employees spent their paychecks in the economy. Take
those supply chain and induced consumption impacts
into account, and the job and labor income totals rise
to 2,147 and $77.7 million, respectively. That total
labor, inside and outside the heritage organizations
was associated with $196.3 million in economic output
(Table 1).

m Donations, grants, and in-kind contributions
underwrote $56 million in organizational activity.
During 2019, Oregon’s heritage organizations and
trusts received $56 million in revenue from in-kind

contributions, grants, and donations, which accounted
for 57 percent of reported revenues that year.

Volunteers contributed $8.5 millionin-kind labor and
300,000 hours of time to heritage organizations in
2019. Our analysis found that nearly 6,000 Volunteers
who give their time to support Oregon’s heritage
organizations play a critical role in Oregon’s heritage
activities and ensuring the organizations remain viable.
During 2019, Oregon’s heritage organizations reported
6,000 volunteers across the state who donated their
time to these organizations. Not all entities track the
number of hours donated, but a separate analysis
by the Oregon Heritage Commission estimated that
volunteers contributed over 300,000 hours of time
valued at almost $8.5 million in in-kind labor support.!

HERITAGE
Tradition

BINCE 1919

Table 1: Economic Contributions for Heritage Organizations, 2019

Effect Employment
Direct 1,599
Indirect impacts (supply chain effects) 237
Induced impacts (consumption changes) 311

2,147

Labor Income Value Added Output
$46,725,869 $58,211,503 $97,518,122
$14,508,906 $27,368,795 $48,989,210
$16,453,071 $29,297,317 $49,843,832
$77,687,845 $114,877,615 $196,351,164

! Chikoto-Schultz, G. L., & Christiansen, C. (2020). The Value of Oregon Heritage Organizations’ Volunteers: An Oregon Heritage Commission
Volunteer Study—A Summary Report. Nonprofit Institute. Portland State University.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

Page 31 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 13



PART 1: ECONOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS OF

OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND TOURISM

Figure 4: Figure 5:
Distribution of Volunteers by Region Annual Heritage Organization Visits (Millions),
2017-2021
25

20 199 1.93 1.95

15
1.0
0.5
0.0

Source: ECONorthwest

Annual Heritage Organizations (in millions)

Organization Volunteers By Region
. 2500r Less . 251-500
B 1001-2000 [ 2,001 0r More

B 501-1,000

77 N/A

Unsurprisingly, visits to heritage organizations declined
in 2020 and partially rebounded in 2021. If the rest of the
economy is a guide, organizations and events should see
additional recovery in 2022 and 2023.

Source: ECONorthwest

Visitor/Tourism Impacts

m Heritage visitors spent $137 million in 2019. The

nearly 3 million visitors in 2019 spent about $26 per

m Heritage organizations and events attracted nearly visit—or $77.6 million. The Portland region led in visitor

three millionvisitorsin2019.Heritage sitesand events spending but was followed closely by the North Coast.

convey their full range of sociocultural values when The Placer.ai data suggested a higher share of the visits

. . .. were overnight, which increased the average per visit
people show up to experience, interact, or participate

in them. And in the year preceding the global pandemic expenditure to $55.

millions of people did. Heritage organizations hosted
Inall these encounters, visitors supported economic

activity but, more importantly, they gained a better
understanding of the world they live in, strengthen
connections to places they call home, and built a
sense a community.

almost two million visitors while traditional events
added another million. The Portland region—home to
OMSI, the Portland Art Museum, the Oregon Historical
Society—drew the highest number of organizational
visits, but the Willamette Valley led in visits to events
with draws like the Oregon State Fair, the Oregon

Country Fair, Lebanon’s Strawberry Festival, and m Heritage tourism supported more than 1,300 jobs,

ECONorthwest

Woodburn'’s Fiesta Mexicana. All nine regions drew at
least 50,000 visitors (to organizations and events), and
six drew more than 175,000 each.

ECONOMICS -

FINANCE - PLANNING

contributed in $55 million in labor income. Spending
by tourists supported local economies by eating in
local restaurants, purchasing from local shops, and in

Page 32 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 14



PART 1: ECONOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS OF

OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND TOURISM

some cases spending a night in a local hotel. In 2019,  Figure é:

visitor spending directly supported about 910 jobs—  Visitation-Related Spending by Region, 2019
concentrated in the leisure and hospitality sector.
The induced and indirect effects (supply chains and
consumption changes) supported another 193 and 223
jobs, respectively—to bring the total to 1,325. Those

@l

jobs were associated with $55 million in labor income
Oregon:

and $147 million in economic output. Vil $3 $4,2931870

m Tourism spending generated $3.2 million in state

and local taxes. Fiscal contributions are not economic
contributions, but the analyses often go together. The

Southern
QOregon:

just described tourism impacts have tax implications. $41110,833

Direct Spending by Visitors

$2,500,000 or Less $2,500,000-$5,000,000
B $5.000,000-$10,000,000 [} $10,000,000-$20,000,000
B $20,000,000 or More
Source: ECONorthwest

Table 3:
Tax Revenue from Tourism Spending

Category Revenues

Social Insurance Tax $74,371
Tax on Production and Imports $1,985,449
Corporate Profits Tax $171,126
Personal Tax $967,552

Total State and Local Tax $3,198,498

Source: ECONorthwest

Table 2: Economic Impacts of Heritage Visitation Spending, 2019

Impact Type Employment Labor Income Value Added Output
Direct spendings by visitors 909 $31,878,031 $45,171,352 $77,585,746
Indirect impacts (supply chain effects) 193 $11,525,876 $17,811,573 $33,806,803
Induced (consumption changes) 223 $11,767,428 $20,939,535 $35,630,682
Total 1.325 $55,171,335 $83,922,461 $147,023,231
Source: ECONorthwest
ECONorthwest page Sacr o0

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 15
ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING



PART 2

ECONOMIC BENEFITS OF OREGON'S HERITAGE

The previous section presents the economic contribution
of Oregon’s heritage organizations and traditions, through

the lens of dollars spent and circulated through the o7l T the ey
economy.Butasnoted, Oregon’s heritage organizations and : ofgichteps
traditions produce economic value in so many other ways. < pcest@rs
Quantifying this value is an exercise that is well beyond the 7 "8 y ‘:‘ . '. T A '
scope of this research effort. But ignoring these many other . Y Y

economic benefits would leave out an important part of the i - ---MCPEM_&*:

-

story and reason why Oregonians should continue to invest
in protecting and engaging with our heritage endowment.

Economic Value of Heritage

Organizations and Traditions Not
Captured by Economic Contributions

We measured the economic footprint of heritage
organizations and heritage traditions because when people
visit these places they spend money, which is a measurable
outcome. But the amount someone spends on heritage
activities represents only part of their economic value.
Here are some of the other economic benefits that arise
from heritage activities:

m When people purchase a ticket for admission for
$2 but would have been willing to spend $5, the
difference reflects consumer surplus value. It is not
picked up in the transaction itself but is a measure of
the full value of the experience to the visitor. Added
up across all visitors, this amount is sizeable and could
be larger than the actual spending—especially because
often admission to heritage museums, libraries, and
some traditions is small compared to other types of
entertainment or free/by donation.

ECONorthwest Page 34 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON'S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 16
ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING




PART 2: ECONOMIC BENEFITS OF OREGON'S HERITAGE

m Heritage organizations and traditions bring people
together in shared purpose and identity, serving
as institutional and networking “glue” that binds
communities together (known as social capital). This
“glue” is difficult to measure in economic terms, but our
communities would not be the same without it.

m Some people may have participated in a tradition
or visited an organization once and are willing
to pay for future visitors to have a similar experience.
Or maybe they read about the tradition and learned
something new. Or they've never been but wish to
participate someday. These sources of value represent
option value, existence value, and bequest value and
are often expressions of spiritual value, historic value,
educationvalue, and social value that people have (see
the box on page 10). Sometimes these values motivate
people to spend real money—perhaps as a donation to
the organization—or use their time to volunteer. But
often this value is uncaptured in monetary terms.

m Sometimes an organization or tradition’s physical asset
produces value for the community directly. Historic
structures and open spaces that house organizations
and traditions—and may not exist but for the
stewardship of the organization—produce economic
value for the surrounding community. They may elevate
nearby property values, and generate aesthetic value
that contribute to sense of place.

While these values are challenging (in some cases impossible
or inappropriate—see inset) to measure in economic terms,
they are legitimate sources of economic value that likely far
outweigh the economic value measured in the economic
activity that these organizations and traditions produce.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING

G W

Cultural, Spiritual, and
Tribal Heritage Values

Traditional monetary measures of economic
importance can be inappropriate to describe
the value of cultural, spiritual, or tribal values.
Monetization implies substitutability (i.e., that
monetary compensation at some level can make
whole the loss of the service, because equivalent
services may be purchased). For example,
archaeological values, such as burial grounds and
ceremonial sites, are non-renewable and have no
substitutes. Given that many, if not all, cultural
values for tribes are defined by place, tradition,
and continuity of use and practice, no alternative
resource could provide a sufficient substitute
for the resources in question. Although they are
not appropriate to monetize in economic terms,
cultural and heritage values of tribes are of

significant importance.

Cannon Beach
y Sandcastle Contest

Pear Blossom Festival

since 1954
since 1964
April - Medford
June ~ Cannon Beach

Portland
Midsummer Festival

Linn County
Ploneer Picnic

since 1887

since 1928

Tune - Portand June = Brownsville

Astoria Regatta

since 1961 R since 1994

S
- b .

August - Junction City Angust - Astoria

Page 35 of 69
ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 17



PART 2: ECONOMIC BENEFITS OF OREGON'S HERITAGE

Heritage Tradition Spotlight:
University of Oregon Mother’s Day Powwow (1969)

The Powwow came out of the Indian Relocation Act of 1956,
when the U.S. Government compelled Native Americans
to leave reservations and traditional lands for cities. While
many of the promises the U.S. Government made in exchange
for relocation (jobs, training, moving expenses) did not
materialize, this migration led many Native Americans—
displaced from their traditional lands across the country—
to seek each other out. This took the form of intercultural
exchange through the Powwow, which in turn led to
intertribal organizing throughout the 1960s. The Mother’s
Day Powwow, held at the University of Oregon, is Oregon’s
oldest documented Powwow. It features connection, dancing,
recognition of accomplishments, honoring mothers, and
sharing of food through a Salmon Bake.

The nature of the event, which brings tribal members and non-
tribal memberstogether fromacrossthe country,is associated
with visitation and related spending. This economic footprint,
however, is a relatively small indication of the economic
value the event creates. The Powwow is a perfect example of
social capital in action: building and reinforcing connections
between people, year after year, with tangible outcomes that

improve quality of life.

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS -

FINANCE - PLANNING

' 4

The modern Powwow in the 1950s led to broader organizing
among tribes and movement toward greater recognition and
justice for Native Americans. The Mother’s Day Powwow is
open to everyone and showcases the heritage and culture of
many Native Americans, including the people who originally
inhabited the land we today know as Oregon. The land the
Powwow takes place on at the University of Oregon is the
traditional indigenous homeland of the Kalapuya people. It
also reinforces cultural value through intergenerational and
intercultural transmission of traditions, which is instrumental
in preserving heritage for future generations.

E‘As““iﬁé

FLOREMCE

RO GUEST | & 2
e = atat

Page 36 of 69

ECONOMIC IMPACTS AND VALUE OF OREGON’S HERITAGE ORGANIZATIONS AND EVENTS | 18






































































































QREGON
STATE
TREASURY

Trust Name: OITP - Oregon
Entity Name: OREGON CULTURAL TRUST
Entity Type: Plan

Entity Number: OCT

0.100690385
1248.100580812

Beginning Ratio:
Beginning Price:

Beginning Balance:

Amort/Accretion Income
Dividend Income

Interest Income

Commission Recapture

Stock Loan Income

Other Income

Investment Manager Expense
Tax Withholding Expenses
Other Expenses

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Asset Transfers - In

Units Purchased/Sold Asset Transfers
Capital Gains

Other Capital

Realized Gain Loss

Margin Variation

Unrealized Gain Loss - Security

Ending Balance:

Net Change
Ending Ratio: 0.100690385
Ending Price: 1274.497582968

OITP - Oregon
PLAN ACCOUNTING REPORT
January 1, 2023 to January 31, 2023

Amount
30,361,009.81

10,149.05
0.00
104,109.02
0.00

0.00

88.91
(1,315.98)
0.00

0.00
1,143,528.72
(1,228,391.37)
84,862.65
0.00

0.00

0.00
117,612.56
0.00
411,483.88

31,003,137.25

642,127.44

Units

24,325.77

24,325.77

0.00

YTD Amount

30,814,238.27

17,716.36
0.00
664,064.85
0.00

990.36

0.00
(9,179.85)
0.00
(2,316.16)
12,609,662.77

(12,853,155.11)

243,492.33
0.00

0.00

0.00
(961,353.99)
0.00
478,977.42

31,003,137.25

188,898.98

Page 67 oﬁgg% 10of1









	Dashboard_2021.pdf
	Page-1�

	Dashboard_2021.pdf
	Page-1�




